
A N N U A L  R E P O R T
2 0 2 1

I N O V A  C R E D I TI N O V A  C R E D I T
U N I O NU N I O N



A G M  

P A G E S

AGENDA- 86TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

MEETING MINUTES- 85TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (PG. 1-2)

SERVICE AWARDS (PG. 3)

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS (PG. 4)

CHAIR AND GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  (PG. 5)

2021 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (PG. 6-36)

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT  (PG. 37)
 

CREDIT COMMITTEE REPORT  (PG. 37)

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS  (PG. 37)

 



A G E N D A  

A G M

WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER
DETERMINATION OF QUORUM
MOMENT OF SILENCE IN MEMORY OF DECEASED
MEMBERS
RULES OF ORDER
APPROVAL OF AGENDA
APPROVAL OF APRIL 20, 2021 AGM MINUTES 
SERVICE AWARDS
ELECTION OF DIRECTOR
REPORTS
CHAIR AND GENERAL MANAGER’S JOINT REPORT
AUDITOR’S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT  
CREDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 
APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS
NEW BUSINESS  
DIRECTOR APPOINTMENT
ADJOURNMENT 

1.
2.
3.

4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

10.
11.

12.



A G M P A G E  0 1

A N N U A L  G E N E R A L  M E E T I N G  

85th iNova Credit Union Virtual Annual General Meeting 
Tuesday, April 20, 2021 at 6:00 pm

 
1.Opening Remarks - Gina Green reviewed the procedures for the virtual meeting.

2.Quorum - Gina Green confirmed there were 18 members in attendance therefore a quorum was
established.

3.Call to Order - At 6:01pm the meeting was called to order by Wayne Pace, Chair of the Board of
Directors.

4.Moment of Silence – Wayne Pace asked that a moment of silence be observed in memory of our
members who had passed away in 2020. 

5.Adoption of Agenda – Wayne Pace asked that the agenda for the 85th Annual General Meeting be
adopted as presented. 

Motion 20-01: It was moved by Dave Moffatt, seconded by Jayme Melrose, that the agenda for the 85th
Annual General Meeting be adopted as presented.                                                                                   Carried

6.Approval of the 84rd AGM Meeting Minutes - Minutes were reviewed from the 84th Annual General
Meeting held November 10, 2020.

Motion 20-02: It was moved by Dan Welch, seconded by Jayme Melrose, that the minutes of the 84th
Annual General Meeting be approved.                                                                                                        Carried

7.Nomination Report – Karla MacKeen stated that a call for nominations was posted in the branch and on
our website for a period of 30 days. 3 members were nominated for the 3 vacancies. Shaun Carvery, Mike
Ansari and Angela Franklin were elected by acclamation. 

8.Chair and General Managers Report – Wayne Pace and Karla MacKeen presented their joint report.
Highlights in 2020 included continued asset and deposit growth and operating profit before taxes of
$314,402.  There is significant change on the horizon with new digital services and enhanced cyber
security. Adapting new digital technologies to address the needs of our members and to grow iNova have
been our key focus and will continue to be in the years ahead.  

Motion 20-03: It was moved by Angela Franklin, seconded by Shaun Carvery, that the Chair and General
Managers Report be accepted.                                                                                                                      Carried

9.External Auditors Report – Miles Sweeney, Chartered Accountant for Miles T. Sweeney Inc. reviewed
the Credit Union’s income and expenses, comparing 2019 and 2020. Also reviewed were the statements of
net income, comprehensive income and retained earnings, cash flows for the year end, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. In summary Miles
highlighted a number of strengths including asset growth to $49M, an increase in net income to $311k
($45k higher than 2019) and equity at 10.2% compared to the 5% required. Current challenges include
membership growth along with loan interest and other income growth. To improve profitability the
Credit Union needs to continue to manage operating expenses and grow the loan portfolio with quality
loans. 

Motion 20-04: It was moved by Dan Welch, seconded by Dave Moffatt, that the External Auditors Report
be accepted.                                                                                                                                                Carried
    



A G M  P A G E  0 2

10. Audit Committee Report - Mike Ansari, Chair of the Audit Committee presented his report. Mike
reviewed the Committee responsibilities and reported they are confident the Credit Union’s financial
reporting systems and controls are adequate to meet regulatory and statutory requirements. Mike
thanked his fellow committee Dan Welch and Justin Sampson for their contributions over the past year.

Motion 20-05: It was moved by Mitchell Wells, seconded by Dave Moffatt, that the Audit Committee
Report be accepted.                                                                                                                                          Carried

11.Credit Committee Report – Angela Franklin, Chair of the Credit Committee presented the Credit
Committee report with an overview of the committee’s responsibilities and stated that the Board was
satisfied with the reporting and adherence to policy. Angela thanked her fellow committee members as
well as Thomas Redden who acts as the staff resource.

Motion 20-06: It was moved by Jayme Melrose, seconded by Chad Fowler, that the Credit Committee
Report be accepted.                                                                                                                                          Carried

12.Appointment of Auditors for 2021 - Mike Ansari, Chair of the Audit Committee recommended the re-
appointment of Miles T. Sweeney Inc. as the auditors for 2021. 

Motion 20-07: It was moved by Angela Franklin, seconded by Mitchell Wells, to accept the re-appointment
of Miles T. Sweeney Inc. as the external auditors for 2021.                                                                       Carried              
                    
13.New Business – No new business

14.Adjournment – At 6:31 Wayne expressed appreciation to the members and guests attending the virtual
AGM and the staff’s contribution in making the meeting a success and asked for a motion to adjourn the
meeting.

Motion 20-08: It was moved by Jayme Melrose to adjourn the meeting.                                                 Carried

Submitted by
 
Angela Franklin                                                                           Wayne Pace          
Board Secretary                                                                           Board Chair   
                                   



A G M  P A G E  0 3

Service Award
We are proud to present Angie Fong with her 20-year service award, Dave Moffatt with his 10-year
service award and Thomas Redden with his 5-year service award. On behalf of the board, your
coworkers and the membership we thank you for your service and your continuing support.
                                

A N G I E  F O N G  –  2 0  Y E A R S
 

D A V E  M O F F A T T  –  1 0  Y E A R S
 

T H O M A S  R E D D E N  –  5  Y E A R S

Y E A R S  O F  S E R V I C E  



Jayme Melrose has served on the board for 2 previous
terms. Jayme runs a small business in the community and
has a lot of community connections to share. 

Justin Sampson is a Chartered Professional Account with 10
years experience in senior accounting roles. He joined the
board 2 years ago as part of the amalgamation with
Electragas CU and is looking forward to serving another
term. 

Suzy Hansen is new to the board.  Suzy is the current MLA
for Halifax Needham and through her extensive community
work and experience has built relationships with many
leaders in our community. Suzy’s experience with cross
community engagement provides her with the foundational
knowledge to work in a varying degree of settings. Suzy is
looking forward to being part of a collective team that
aspires to help build a better community.

                                

A G M  P A G E  0 4

Election of Directors

There were three, 3-year term positions on the Board of Directors available this
year.  A call for nominations was made on March 3rd, 2022 and closed on
March 31, 2022 resulting in a slate of 3 candidates. With there being 3
nominations for the 3 vacancies the candidates elected by acclamation are
Jayme Melrose, Justin Sampson and Suzy Hanson.  

                                



A G M P A G E  0 5

Chair of the Board of Directors and General Manager's Report
This evening marks our credit union’s 86th annual general meeting and we are pleased to report on the past
year and look ahead to some of the things on the horizon for next year. 

iNova Credit Union had a successful year recording a net income of $324,427, $13k higher than last year.Our
total assets increased 11.6% to nearly $55 million and member deposits grew over $5 million for a 13%
increase for the year. In 2021 we continued to experience pressure on our financial margin as the Bank of
Canada elected to keep the prime rate unchanged resulting in lower interest revenue and investment revenue.
We did however manage our expenses and are very pleased with our outcomes for 2021.
Your Board of Directors met in the Fall of 2021 to set a course for iNova’s strategic focus around current trends
and decisions facing the credit union over the next three years. Branch usage has been declining for some time
as members are increasingly using digital channels to transact and manage their money. COVID-19 has
accelerated this shift and has changed the competitive landscape for iNova. It is with this context that your
Board met to review its strategic plan and consider how best prepare and position your Credit Union for
growth in a post-COVID world.

A significant investment in digital services over the next couple of years is expected and will challenge our
bottom line. With this in mind, your board has elected to forgo paying out patronage for the 2021 year.
Decisions will have to be made in the upcoming years when considering the level of investment needed to meet
the expectations and needs of our members.

The Bank of Canada is forecasted to increase prime a number of times in 2022 which should help alleviate the
pressure we have been experiencing on our financial margins but we must continue to grow our loan portfolio
with quality loans and good security to minimize loan write offs and increase our income. 

As always, giving back to our communities is very important to us and our team at iNova. We continued to
demonstrate a strong commitment to our communities throughout 2021 with the following initiatives
·     Back to school supplies and cash donation to Parker St Food Bank
·     Smitten for Mittens
·     Jean day fundraiser for the cancer society
·     Support for the arts with a Bus Stop Theatre sponsorship 
In addition, iNova is proud to continue supporting local initiatives such as the NEST program, which in 2021
provided 4 micro loans to small businesses in the North End. We also provided financing to some interesting
new businesses, ranging from tree houses to tiny homes to everything in between. Notable small business
startups included specialty coffee locations, outdoor adventure promoters and many new small businesses in
the wellness industry. iNova continues to hold a diverse small business portfolio that maintains the unique
vibe and culture in Halifax and surrounding areas. 
I am incredibly blessed to work with a very efficient and dedicated group of colleagues without whom I could
not function and I want to thank them for the effort and work they put in every day.
I would like to also thank your Board of Directors for providing outstanding support and working hard on your
behalf to ensure long-term success of your Credit Union. 
On behalf of the Board, Management and Staff we wish to thank you for choosing us as your Financial
Institution. We would not be here without your loyalty and advocacy.

Wayne Pace                                                                                   Karla MacKeen
Board Chair                                                                                   General Manager



A G M P A G E  0 6

2021 Financial Statements



A G M P A G E  0 7



A G M  P A G E  0 8



A G M  P A G E  0 9



A G M  P A G E  1 0



A G M  P A G E  1 1



A G M P A G E  1 2



A G M  P A G E  1 3



A G M  P A G E  1 4



A G M P A G E  1 5



A G M  P A G E  1 6



A G M P A G E  1 7



A G M P A G E  1 8



A G M P A G E  1 9



A G M P A G E  2 0



A G M  P A G E  2 1



A G M  P A G E  2 2



A G M P A G E  2 3



A G M  P A G E  2 4



A G M  P A G E  2 5



A G M  P A G E  2 6



A G M  P A G E  2 7



A G M  P A G E  2 8



A G M P A G E  2 9



A G M P A G E  3 0



A G M P A G E  3 1



A G M P A G E  3 2



A G M P A G E  3 3



A G M P A G E  3 4



A G M P A G E  3 5



A G M P A G E  3 6



A G M  P A G E  3 7

Audit and Risk Committee Report

For the year ended December 31, 2021

Your Audit and Risk Committee meets at least quarterly to: 
a. Review and report on interim financial reports and key performance indicators.
b. Review and report on the audited year end financial statements and follow up on all
recommendations
c. Review correspondence from our regulators follow up on any audit irregularities
d. Review the Enterprise Risk Management measures
e. Randomly select and review of loan files
I am pleased to report that the Committee is confident the Credit Union’s financial reporting systems
and controls are adequate to meet regulatory and statutory requirements.
I would like to thank my fellow committee members Dan Welch and Justin Sampson for their
contributions over the past year. 

Respectfully submitted,

Mike Ansari
Chair, Audit & Risk Committee

Credit Committee Report

Credit Committee Report for the year ended December 31, 2021

The responsibilities of Credit Unions are dictated by the Credit Union Act which are the basis of iNova
Credit Union’s polices.  The committee meets on a quarterly basis to ensure the loan policy is respected. 
 The committee reviews the loan diversification, delinquencies, the allowance for doubtful loans, loan
rewrites and extensions, loans to staff and directors that are in arrears as well as approving write-offs.  
The minutes of the meeting and the findings are presented to the Board on a quarterly basis, and I am
pleased to report to the membership that the Board was satisfied with the reporting and the adherence to
policy.  
The other members of the credit committee are Gary Blackburn, Arthur Rudge, Irvine Carvery and Shaun
Carvery.  I would like to thank the members of the committee for their support during the year.  In
addition, I would like to thank Thomas Redden, who prepares the reports and provides answers to our
questions. 

Respectfully Submitted,

Angela Franklin
Chair, Credit Committee

Appointment of Auditors 

On behalf of the Board of Directors of iNova Credit Union, I recommend that the auditing firm of Miles T.
Sweeney Limited, Chartered Accountants, or their successor as independent auditors, be reappointed as
the auditors for iNova Credit Union for the fiscal year of 2022
 
Mike Ansari, 
Chair, Audit and Risk Committee 
 


